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not to discuss your testimony.

THE CLERK: All rise.

(At 3:26:59 p.m., recess in proceedings.)
THE CLERK: All rise. Part 97 is back in

session.

THE COURT: You may be seated, everyone.
You may resume.
MR. BROWN: Thank ycu, Your Honor.

THE COURT: And again, Agent Fitzgerald, you can.

state your name for the record, please.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Chad Fitzgerald.
THE COURT: And remind you, Agent, that you're

still under oath.

Mr. Brown, any cross examination?

MR. BROWN: Thank you. Thank you for giving me

a little time, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Certainly.
MR. BROWN: I appreciate it.

SPECIAL AGENT CHAD FITZGERALD

(A witness produced on call by the State, having been

previously sworn according to law, retakes the witness

stand and testifies as follows:)

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. BROWN:

Q Mr. Fitzgerald, I want to just talk you a little
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bit through the time sequence. When did Mr. Vignarajah

engage you for this case?

A I believe it was the beginning of January, maybe

January 4th or 5th, somewhere around --
Q January 4th or 5th; do you have some

documentation of that?

A No. It was just a phone call. I was actually

visiting my brother. I wasn't even in Atlanta.

Q Right, so was that prior to looking at the — I

assume you reviewed all the documents prior to that?

A Since then.

Q Since then.
A I did not have — we just spoke on the phone

kind of as an introduction and I had not seen any of the

documents at that point.
Q Okay. It was sort of like hey, Thiruvendran

Vignarajah. I've got this case coming up. Can you come

in and be my cell tower expert?

A No, not exactly. His team, or I don't know if

it was him directly was communicating with other people

that I work with within CAST. They referred him to me and

then we just, I guess he got my number or I got his number

and one of us, I don't even remember who called who.
Q Okay. And then how much time passed until you

were able to review the documents, approximately?
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A I don't know. I mean he probably took a week or

so maybe more to give me the -- to actually send me the

documents.
Q Okay, because I imagine you are the kind of

expert who can take a look at documents pretty quickly,

size them up and you can figure out the problem pretty

quickly, right?

A I mean, I take my time studying them and looking

at them to do my analysis.

Q Okay, okay. So but by January 5th of 2016 you

had not yet reviewed the documents, correct?

A No, like beginning of January, you know, before

our first conversation I had not seen any of the

documents.
Q Okay, okay. So when Mr. Vignarajah wrote an

expert disclosure letter, the opinions that he would have

expressed in that letter did you write those opinions out

or were they just Mr. Vignarajah's opinions at that point?

A I didn't write the expert disclosure but I don't

know, I mean we typically do that in the federal system so

-- and I don't recall if I forwarded him an example of one

that's been written for me in the past or not, but I did

not help write it with him.

Q Okay. Well, this case is like no other cell

tower case that you've ever done, is that fair to say
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because of this particular issue? It's a very novel

issue. You testify that.

A It's if you — I think it's a different angle

you're taking, but it’s a standard analysis. I mean it's

not unusual I don't think.

Q All right, so you’ve had a lot of cases where

it's disputed whether incoming calls are reliable for

location?

A Like I said, the angle you're taking is a little

bit different than I’ve seen in the past. I’ve never seen

that before in the past. However, the actual analysis of

the records, the records that were obtained relating it to

witness statements, crime scenes, that's standard run-of-
the-mill stuff that our team does all the time.

Q Do you know what the issue that we’re raising is

as the Petitioner?

A I assume talking about the incoming calls.
Q Right. We're saying that because AT&T

explicitly says incoming calls are not reliable for

location we're saying that that means what it says, right.

So in that sense you've never had a case dealing with

that, right?

A Correct.

Q Okay. And because you ’ve never had a case

dealing with that you've never previously written an
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expert disclosure specifically dealing with that type of

case, right?

A I've never written an expert disclosure.

Q You've never written one?

A Like you're talking about a disclosure to the

defense —
Q Well, the portion of it that pertains to you.
A — about a cell site expert?

Q The portion that pertains to you.

A The attorneys usually write those --
MR. BROWN: Okay. Okay.

A — I don't write those.
Q Have you even seen Mr. Vignarajah's disclosure?

A I don't believe so.

MR. BROWN: I would like to — let's see. I

would like to introduce this as Petitioner's Exhibit PC2-
45. I'm going to move these boards.

THE COURT: Is that the correct number then,

Madam?

THE CLERK: I'm sorry, PC2-45?
THE COURT: 45.

MR. BROWN: For identification only.
THE CLERK: That would be a new one, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay, it would be a new one then,

but the number's correct. We'll mark that for
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identification purposes only.

MR. BROWN: For identification only at this

point.
(Expert disclosure notice marked for identification

as Defendant's Exhibit No. PC2-45.)
And if you could highlight in on the paragraph

that talks about Special Agent Chad Fitzgerald, okay.

Would you like to take a moment and read that?

Is there a portion that — have you read it yet?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Yes.

BY MR. BROWN:

Q Okay. Is there a portion that says the State’s

presentation at trial of telephone records and expert

testimony concerning those records was sound and not

misleading? Up higher it kind of says, yeah — that the

analysis and testimony of Abraham Waranowitz concerning

the cell site data corresponding to Petitioner's cellular

telephone records was sound and not misleading.

At this point you haven’t even read the

testimony, right?

A Well, when was it? Because I got the testimony

from my colleague about that first week in January.

Q Oh, okay, now you got it the first week of

January?

A Right. I believe we talked the first of week in
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January and I said it took awhile to get to me.
Q Okay, good. Good, that’s interesting, because

before you testified first that you talked to Mr.
Vignarajah in the first week of January, around January

5th which is the date of that letter.
A We talked on the weekend after New Year's Day.
Q Okay. And did you -- but you never review the

records until a week later at least?

A I believe I received them in about the next,

over a time period of the next week.
Q Point being you received them after the 5th;

would you agree to that?

A Was that like Tuesday maybe?

Q My question was did you receive the records

after January 5th? You’re under oath. You're under oath,

Agent.

A Right, I understand that.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Objection, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Sustained.

BY MR. BROWN:

Q Did you receive them after January 5th?

A I believe I did receive them after January 5th.
Q Right, okay. So and now what you’re telling me

is that however you had received the transcripts before

then, right?
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A I received the transcripts I believe that week

from my colleague that ’s in Baltimore.

Q Did you receive the transcripts before or after

January 5th?

A I'm sure it was after, but in that week.
Q Okay. So before you just told me if I heard

right that you received them before the letter, the

transcripts that is, now you received them after the

letter?

A I don't think I ever testified that I received

them before the letter.
Q Really. Okay, maybe I heard you wrong. But

that opinion you formed is that your opinion?

A It’s my opinion as I testified on direct. Yes,

that's my opinion.

0 Okay. So is it possible that really that's Mr.

Vignarajah's opinion?

A Well, we spoke on the phone I believe that

weekend for quite awhile and we went over several things.

He read the disclaimer to me. I knew immediately when he

mentioned the blacked out columns and I said oh, that must

mean they used a subpoena to get the records.

We went through the whole disclaimer and I told

him what I thought and it was the same opinion that I

testified to that they're strictly referring to when calls
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are incoming there is potential for a switch to be

populated —
Q Right.
A -- that doesn't necessarily mean exactly where

you are.

Q But okay, so but do you own that opinion? Do

you own this opinion?

A It looks pretty fair. I mean, I think that

pretty much matches what I testified to on direct.

Q Okay. And it's based on your review of the

records, right, this opinion?

A Our telephone conversation, yes, and then since

then my opinion.
Q Okay, so you've nailed it. I mean you got it

100 percent right before even reading a single transcript

or before looking at a single document, correct? Yes or

no.
A I don't know if that I got it a hundred percent

right, but we discussed many things.
Q Okay. If you didn't get it right tell me

something in there that's wrong.

A Like I said, I think it's a pretty fair

representation about what we talked about on the phone as

well as what I've discovered since then.
Q Um-hum, okay. And did Mr. Vignarajah ever say
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to you, hey, Mr. Fitzgerald, I would like to show you this

expert disclosure? Before I send it out to the court and

to opposing counsel I want to show you this. I want to

make sure that it's correct. I want to make sure that

it ’s supported by the documents in the case, so why don't

you review it before we send it out. Did he ever do that?

A He did not send it to me, no.
Q Okay. Is it possible, is it possible that it

was Mr. Vignarajah's opinion and now you're coming into

court and you're going to give an opinion that dovetails

with Mr. Vignarajah? Is that possible?

A No. I think he wrote that based on our

conversations.

Q Because you're an independent thinker and you're

your own man, right?

A I've seen a lot of records and he described the

disclaimer to me. He described what was — I mean he

basically went over the case for me because I was not

familiar with the case.

Q Okay. He read you the transcript over the

phone?

A No, he did not read the transcript.
Q Okay. You have since read the transcript,

right?

A Yes.
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Q Okay. And you're standing by Abraham

Waranowitz's testimony 100 percent?

A Most of it, yes.
Q What parts of it are you not standing behind

then?

A Somewhere in there he mentioned in his — the

only part that I disagreed with him on was he mentioned

that one of the calls was the user of the phone calling

his voice mail and I believe it was a call coming in and

sent to the voice mail platform.

Q Okay, let's talk about that call. Do you

remember what that call was?

A No, but I could look at the records to refresh

my —
Q Okay, go ahead find it. I'm sorry, before you

do that are you going to be doing it on the subscriber

activity reports or on the subscriber activity reports?

A I’m doing it on the report with the cell site

that's not redacted. Yes, it's lines 18 and 19 on the

13th.

Q Okay, let's talk about that — 18 and 19 on the

13th. And what is it that Mr. Waranowitz did wrong with

that?

A He stated the user was calling to check his

voire mail.
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MR. BROWN: Okay. And isn't it true that the

reason -- can we put that up on the screen?

MR. NIETO: 37.
MR. BROWN: You can do that. Right.

MR. NIETO: Maybe not, sorry.
MR. BROWN: 18 and 19 right there.

Is that it? Is that the right place?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Yes.
BY MR. BROWN:

Q Okay. Isn't it true — and we both agree; I

agree with you on this. This is one thing we agree on.
Mr. Waranowitz got this wrong because what he said was

that this was the owner of the phone, the subscriber as

you said calling their voice mail to check their voice

mail, right?

A Well, I wouldn't use subscriber. It was the

user of the phone.

Q The user of the phone -- good catch. But it was

something different in fact?

A Right. I believe that is representative of a

call coming in and being sent to the voice mail platform.
Q And the reason that Mr. Waranowitz got this

wrong is because he did not have instructions of how to

read subscriber activity reports, correct?

A I would go one step further and say that the
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reason he got it wrong is most of the engineers they know

the cell towers, the cell system, the RF; they are not

familiar with the law enforcement group, the Subpoena

Compliance Group and how to reading records.
They know how to read records but not as in

depth as -- they're not the Subpoena Compliance Group.
That's why pretty much our unit was created to kind of

bridge that gap.
Q Okay. Let me try the question again. If Mr.

Waranowitz had had the fax cover sheet and the

instructions of how to read those documents would he have

gotten that right? Yes or no.

A I can't speak for him, but I don't see anywhere

in that key other than mentioning about the number sign

talking about the voice mail platform.
Q Okay. So what you're saying then is that by not

having the instructions that's not what caused this

mistake; is that what you're saying?

A Can you say that again?

Q Did I ask that in a confusing way?

A Yeah, it's kind of a —
Q All right, I'm sorry. I'm sorry. It is my —

well, would you agree with me that this mistake was caused

by the fact that Mr. Waranowitz was not in possession of

the fax cover sheet? Would you agree with that?
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A If he was looking strictly at this record that

fax cover sheet does not -- other than that one little

thing about the number sign, the fax cover sheet that

you're talking about does not apply to anything.

Everything else on that fax cover sheet does not apply to

anything on that screen.
MR. BROWN: Right, okay. I'm going to try the

yes or no question one more time. Would you agree with me

that if Abe Waranowitz had had the fax cover sheet he

would have gotten that right?

Please don't put that off unless I ask you to,

sorry.

Would you agree that if Mr. Waranowitz had the

fax cover sheet he would have gotten that right?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: No. I don't —
BY MR. BROWN:

Q No.

A I don't know if he would have gotten it right or

not. He identified the fact that the number sign means

voice mail. He just, I don't think he realized that it

related to that incoming call.
Q Okay. But wouldn't the instructions on the fax

cover sheet have helped him?

A The fax cover sheet doesn't mention anything

about the user dialing his voice mail.
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MR. BROWN: Okay. All right, let's put that on

one side and now let ’s pull up the fax cover sheet and

zoom in on the instructions.

Actually, let's do this. Let’s do this. I'm

sorry. Let's take a step backwards. Let's take a big

step backwards and let's go to Mr. Waranowitz's actual

testimony which we have premarked as PC2-46 which is

already in evidence.
Is this the part of the transcript we're talking

about?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Yes, he's talking

about — the questioning is talking about lines 18 and 19.

BY MR. BROWN:

Q Lines 18 and 19. And in this part of the — and

this in the actual trial, the trial for which Mr. Syed was

convicted, it says on line 12 — Question, I'd like you to

look at lines 18 and 19 on this. What do those two lines

show? Objection. Overruled, et cetera, et cetera. And

then going to line 20, Mr. Waranowitz, this means that the

customer has dialed his voice mailbox.

Okay, something small but something significant;

would you agree?

A I don't think it changes his analysis about the

phone location.

Q Do you think —
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A It's just the direction of a call. You know,

it's the customer checking his voice mail or a call going

to voice mail.

Q But it would be significant if this mistake and

other mistakes like it were caused by the fact that Mr.

Waranowitz did not have the instructions that go along

with the phone records. Even though you're saying these

instructions don't go along with them, if they did that

would be significant, right?

A That's the only thing I saw wrong with his

analysis is that one answer on lines 20 and 21. I did not

see anything else that was wrong with his analysis.
Q Okay, but let's go back. Let's move forward.

So he says that this is someone checking voice mail,

right? Now let's go to the instruction box. And what

does the instruction box say about that?

Okay, can you read — let's start right here.

"When SP is noted" — all the way across here. Okay,

doesn't that explain it pretty clearly?

A Right, on that other set of records because

there’s no SP, there's no type column, there's no dialed

number sign column. There's all of that applies to

the record you were just showing is basically the example.

For instance, the number sign and the phone number and it

says this is an incoming call that was not answered and
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then forwarded to voice mail.
Q Okay. But that number sign, we know that when

there’s a number sign in front of it, it indicates a call

that was forwarded to voice mail, correct?

A Right. It's one leg of the call.
MR. BROWN: Okay. And let’s go back to the call

if we can.
And the lines are again, which lines?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: 18 and 19.
BY MR. BROWN:

Q 18 and 19. See, so that right there on line 18,

I'm pointing to it. There's a number sign in front of

that call, right?

A That's correct, yes.
Q So that if Mr. Waranowitz for example had had

that instruction box he would have known that was a call

that went right to voice mail, correct?

A That is the leg of the call that is going to the

voice mail platform. However, he misspoke and said it was

the user calling his voice mail; in fact it's the incoming

call that was forwarded out.
So the call came into the switch, that's line

19. 19, most likely the user was off network. Then it

gets forwarded out to the voice mail platform which is the

second leg, the line that you have highlighted right
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there. It is a call out to the voice mail platform, but

it is not necessarily by the user and that's where he

misspoke.

Q He misspoke. And you're saying he misspoke and

it wasn’t because he didn't have that fax cover sheet with

that instruction right there?

A I didn't say it was because he didn't have that.

Q Well, I’m saying it was and you're saying you

don't agree with me.

A I don't know why he — he saw the hashtag or the

number sign and that's what he testified to. I don't know

if it was just a mistake when he misspoke or if he truly

just did not know. But I believe he just saw the number

sign and saw that that's a call to voice mail and said

that it was the user calling the voice mail when in fact

it's the system transferring the call to the voice mail.

Q So something more like a slip of the tongue?

A I don't know; I wasn’t there.

Q Okay. Well, what's your theory?

A I did not talk to him.

Q You're the expert. You didn't talk to Mr.

Waranowitz?

A I did not.
Q Okay. You're the expert. What's your expert

opinion as to what caused that error? Can you form one?
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A I don't know. You'd have to ask him. It was

like I — I mean, I testified that that's the one thing I

did not agree with his testimony.

MR. BROWN: Okay. Let’s pull up what I'd like

to introduce into evidence as PC2-48.

(Email marked for identification as Defendant's

Exhibit No. PC2-48.)
THE COURT: And again this is an item that's

already in, Mr. Brown?

MR. BROWN: This is not in. I'd like to offer

this into evidence. It's an email from Mr. Waranowitz.
And let ’s start, can you please read right there

starting with "In the first day"?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Your Honor, may we approach for

a moment?

THE COURT: Please.

(At 3:59:58 p.m., Counsel approached the bench and

the following occurred:)

MR. BROWN: I know, I know.

THE COURT: I know you know. I’m just saying.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Two matters, Your Honor. One,

in the interest of allowing Mr. Brown to establish his

record I've not objected, but this is not the basis of

their claim that you permitted to reopen on. Their
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objection was that incoming towers had to do with the

tower data and the tower analysis. They have now changed

this into something to do with a voice mail call.

I wouldn't object to (inaudible) at this time

except they're now referring to a document that wasn't

disclosed to us. Abe Waranowitz was listed on their

witnesses. I believe that the Court had asked for all

written statements from the list of witnesses to be

provided.

So I appreciate the tactical advantage that

they're trying to gain here, but I do think it puts us in

a little bit of a difficult position to be able to

understand where they're going or what the basis of their

opinion is.

THE COURT: So your objection is it's a

statement by a witness that was not disclosed.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Well, it's not just that. It's

that also it ’s beyond at this point the scope of their

motion to reopen that was granted.
Their initial analysis as I understood it was

that because Cristina Gutierrez didn't cross examine based

on these incoming calls which — outgoing calls for

location information, she was defective, constitutionally

defective. It now appears that they have found a

reference to a call that was sent to voice mail and have
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concluded that Abe Waranowitz misunderstood that as one

call or another.

It's quite a different claim, first, and I, you

know, Mr. Brown's doing his job and trying —
MR. BROWN: Right. Can I speak or is this a

filibuster?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: I'm going to finish, Your

Honor, with all due respect. I do, would appreciate that

we confine it to the claim that was on the basis of

reopening and if not, we get an opportunity to review the

document in advance — I haven't seen the document yet —
before we proceed.

MR. BROWN: A couple things — number one, I'm

using this to cross examine him and to impeach him. He is

saying that this document — that this instruction does

not apply to this set of documents. Abe Waranowitz says

it does; I am attempting to prove that. That's entirely

within our claim, entirely. He's saying the whole thing

doesn't apply, I say it does.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: I haven't even seen —
MR. BROWN: I mean this isn’t even close, Your

Honor. This is an impeachment document. These do have to

be turned over. As Mr. Vignarajah himself said he knows

of no rule that requires, no rule or statute that requires

this. Would you like to join in?

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICE
410-466-2033 2007 W. Rogers Avenue Baltimore, MD 21209 667-210-2925

Find links to evidence described above and many more original documents from this case
                at The Undisclosed Wiki     https://www.adnansyedwiki.com/PCR2016

T-H-A-N-K-S C-A-L-E-B



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

10

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

230

IWFLWIWFFJ 11 \u'i i \ } j i[Hi

ADNAN SYED v. STATE OF MARYLAND
February 5, 2016 BEFORE MARTIN P. WELCH, JUDGE

MR. NIETO: No, no. I'm sorry.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: I think the rule is that the

Court had asked as a courtesy to provide documents of the

list of witnesses. And this, I gather Mr. Brown —
MR. BROWN: I didn't obtain this until last

night.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Until last night?

MR. BROWN: Yeah. I believe it was last night.

I can double check my phone, but I believe it was last

night.
THE COURT: So your objection is one that it's

outside of the narrow opening as to location?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: It is, YOUr Honor. And if Mr.

Brown at this point wants to abandon his theory that

there’s nothing wrong with the location information and

file a petition to reopen on the basis of the voice mail,

I could understand that.
I just, at this point it does feel like whenever

a claim appears as meritorious there's a shift to another

claim and this one seems a little out in left field.

THE COURT: And you say you're going for

impeachment purposes.
MR. BROWN: Not only for impeachment purposes

but to establish the significance of that instruction box

which tells how to read and interpret the phone records
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which is at the heart of our issue.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: I would at this time then —
MR. BROWN: This is not even close, Your Honor,

and to impeach this guy. We have had —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: At this time then, Your Honor,

I would ask for all of the email correspondences between

Mr. Waranowitz and Defense Counsel, because if they're

going to pluck an email from last night without any

context I think that puts us in a very difficult position

to understand the basis of this. And I think this is a

curious timing for this and I would like an opportunity to

review those emails before.

MR. BROWN: Have you turned over your emails

with him?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: If there was anything of

substance or if we were based on them I would be more than

happy to.

THE COURT: First I'd suggest you show Mr. —
MR. BROWN: I'll show him the document.

THE COURT: — Vignarajah the document. And I'm

a bit concerned if we are shifting. It's one thing —
MR. BROWN: I'm not shifting, Your Honor. I am

not shifting.

THE COURT: I'm going to give you some leeway,

give you some leeway for impeachment purposes. But —
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MR. BROWN: Thank you.
THE COURT: — I mean, I'm the trier of fact and

I — you're not going down that --

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, I assure you I am not.
This, you know, I mean --

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Why don't we just call Mr.
Waranowitz, Your Honor? I mean, I understand —

MR. BROWN: This is one thing. I mean this is

not my claim and I'm not saying it is, but it supports our

general claim that this box is really important and when

this witness did not see the instructions it put him at a

loss. And this is really important.

THE COURT: It's all important.
MR. BROWN: It is important.

THE COURT: Show the other side the exhibit.

MR. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Can I see it here with the

Court, with the Judge, Your Honor?

MR. BROWN: Sure.
THE COURT: We also need to decide what you're

going to do with Mr. Irwin because I assume —

MR. VIGNAFAJAH: I don'tneed much time to

rehabilitate this. I think I need to set the record

straight as to my communications with Mr. --
MR. NIETO: How long does Your Honor anticipate
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going this afternoon?

THE COURT: It's all the aftermath that I’ve got

to deal with and 5:00 today we've got to —
MR. NIETO: (Inaudible). We're willing to help

the State with regards to their scheduling. Mr. Irwin has

been here all week and I knew that he's not too keen on

having to once again take another day off on Monday, so.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Your Honor, it says here,

"Justin, sorry to bombard you with these emails, but just

another thought that the disclaimer had changed my

testimony, yes. In the first day of my testimony Urick

asked me about Exhibit 31, specifically what two-line
records mean.

"I meant I answered it means the person is

calling their voice mail. This is wrong. If I had read

the disclaimer instructions the right answer would have

been it means someone was calling Adnan's phone. No one

answered so the call went to voice mail to leave a

message.
"A subtle detail at the most, but it shows, one,

I didn't see/read the fax cover sheet. As an engineer I

would have recognized the distinction; and two, it shows

that my answers would have been different had I read it."
This is exactly my point, Your Honor. It has

nothing to do with the -- he's not suggesting —
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MR. BROWN: So he's saying the instructions were

not shown —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: If I could finish Mr. Brown?

MR. BROWN: — and that affected his testimony.

THE COURT: But how do you get that in through

his email even?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: And really, if he's not going

to — I thought it was as to impeachment.
MR. BROWN: Oh, I see. We're not allowed to

bring in hearsay now?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: I think the challenge here —
THE COURT: I'm not saying that but —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: — Your Honor, is we're

literally talking about, it's not even suggesting that the

record applies to one document versus another. He's just

adding a claim about voice mail.
And I get that there’s a bigger audience, Your

Honor, but this is, it ’s not even about — I don’t think

this is going to get very much, get very far on prejudice,

but it literally is suggesting that he would have given a

different answer with respect to something going to voice

mail. That's the basis of it.

The State isn't disputing whether or not he was

shown the fax cover sheet or not. The State is — the

question is whether or not Ms. Gutierrez failed to cross
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examine based on location, that's it. And this doesn’t
actually serve to impeach this witness's credibility or

his account of which document it is because that's not

what Mr. Waranowitz is talking about.

MR. BROWN: I think he’s looking pretty

impeached right now.

THE COURT: (Inaudible). I'll let it in but

strictly for impeachment purposes. I don't think it goes

to the substance of a claim —
MR. BROWN: Thank you.
THE COURT: — that she failed to properly cross

examine or do what she needed to do as to —
MR. BROWN: Appreciate it.
THE COURT: — location only.
MR. BROWN: Thank you, Judge.

(At 4:08:53 p.m., Counsel returned to trial tables

and the following occurred in open court:)

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You're welcome.

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, I'd like to introduce

into evidence Petitioner's Exhibit PC2-48.
THE COURT: And the Court notes the State's

objection. The Court will admit it into evidence for the

limited purpose and give it the weight it should have.
(Email received into evidence as Defendant's Exhibit
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No. PC2-48.)

BY MR. BROWN:

Q Sir, just to sum things up, Agent, I was saying

that gee, it sure would have been helpful if Mr.
Waranowitz had instructions of how to read the phone

records before he was asked to testify about the phone

records, correct?

A Or talk to somebody or, I mean within his

company I'm sure it would have helped.
Q Okay. So let's say you're operating a new type

of machine that you never operated before. Would it be

helpful to have the written instructions before you

operate that?

A it can be. But I've also learned by playing

around on the machine or on the computer in the software.

Q Okay, so it's not necessarily helpful to have

instructions to things?

A I didn't say — I mean instructions can

definitely be helpful. I think there are many ways that

Abe could have gone about finding out what the details in

the calls meant.
Q Okay. But you understand that it's important

when an expert witness gets on the stand, right, that

their testimony has to be accurate because as we all know

expert testimony, generally speaking, especially in front
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of a jury, it holds a lot of weight, right?

A I would hope so, yes.

Q Yeah. And that's why you take your job so

seriously, right?

A Yes.
Q Because you know that when you go out there and

you take that witness stand that the jury’s going to

think, hey, you know, this is an FBI guy. This guy must

sure know what he's talking about, right?

A Correct, yes.

Q Okay, okay. So that if you get up there and you

start saying things that either are wrong or they're not

true then that's a pretty serious problem; would you agree

to that?

A Well, if it's like in this, kind of tying that

to this particular case, yes, he made a mistake regarding

the direction of the call and what those two lines mean.

But as far as the cell site analysis which is his

specialty, as far as the RF connection where the phone

would need to be to make those calls or receive those

calls he was, in my opinion, spot on.
Q Okay. Well, what if Abe Waranowitz himself —

and I* m going to call him Abe because his name is very

hard to pronounce.

A That's what I'm calling him.
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Q What if Abe himself stated unequivocally that he

would not have given his testimony the way he did if he

had seen those instructions?

A Well, I think clearly from this email, which I

assume is from him, he says he would testify to the

direction of that call differently, but he says nothing

about the cell site or the general location of the phone.

Q Okay. So you’re satisfied with testimony that's

mostly correct; is that true?

A No. When you asked me if I agreed with him a

hundred percent I told you right on the answer to the

question. I said I did not agree with that statement he

made.
Q Okay. But would you concede that's a problem?

A I don't think it changes his overall analysis

one bit.
Q That wasn't my question though. Would you

concede that it's a problem?

A As far as in relation to what, the direction of

the call?

Q Him testifying without having the instructions.

A I see that he incorrectly talked about the

direction of the call and what was happening in that one

call. He did not say anything wrong about the actual cell

site analysis, like I said earlier.
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Q Okay. Tell me about your friends over at AT&T.
What are their names?

A Which ones?

Q The ones who you talked about this problem with,

what are their names?

A The manager of the Subpoena Compliance Group is

Steve Gordon.
Q Steve Gordon. Where does he work out of?

A He's the manager of the Subpoena Compliance

Group.
Q Okay. Is this the person who told you about

this problem?

A I discussed this with Steve, yes.
Q And was Steve — sorry, Steve what?

A Gordon.

Q Steve Gordon. Mr. Gordon, how long has he been

the head of the subpoena compliance division?

A Probably as long as I've known him, probably

about five years. I mean, I don't know when he started

that but around in that time period. Let me rephrase

that. When I first met him he was the manager.
Q Okay. And what year was that?

A I want to say it was 2010, somewhere around

there.
Q 2010. Would you agree that that's approximately
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11 years after this?

A Well, I don’t know when he started with AT&T.
And when I discussed it with him he said he went to go

locate any of the, you know, his colleagues that had been

around working that long.
Q Okay. And did he locate them?

A Yes. When we had a follow-up conversation he

said he discussed it with his peers, and I told him what I

thought that disclaimer was referring to and he said

that's what we thought, the exact same thing.
Q Okay. So wouldn’t it have been great though if

he could have gone and spoken to the actual RT engineer

who was involved this?

A The RF engineer?

Q I’m sorry, RF engineer, yeah.
A If he could have spoken to who?

Q The original RF engineer.
A Abe?

Q Yeah.
A I’m sure he — I don't know if he tried. I

don't know what the sort of, I know I asked Thiru if he

could, if Abe was open to it I'd be more than happy to

discuss it with him.
Q Okay.

A And I don't know what, and I never talked to
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Abe.

Q Okay. And I assume that you have some paperwork

to back up your theory?

A My theory of?

Q Your theory, your whole theory that the

instructions don't apply to, your theory that these

instructions only apply to one set of subscriber activity

reports but that they don't apply to another. That is

your theory, right?

A I believe that key is talking about the kind of

expanded subscriber activity report that, you know, that

was up, I think it was State's Exhibit 5.
MR. BROWN: Okay. Let's pull up Petitioner's

Exhibit PC2-15.
Okay, so looking at that fact sheet going into

the instructions it says, what does it say up at the very

top there?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: How to read

subscriber activity reports.

BY MR. BROWN:

Q Okay. Now let's go to the last page of this

document. Okay, and you know that this is in reverse

order, right, so really this is the first page?

A Right.

Q Okay. And what does the header on the document
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say?

A Subscriber activity.
Q So are you telling me that this is not a

subscriber activity report?

A I'm not saying that at all.

Q All right, I'm going to ask you a yes or no

question. Is this a subscriber activity report?

A To me I would call it, it would be a call detail

report. But it clearly states subscriber activity at the

top.
Q So, well, you can see it. I want to hear you

say it. Say, in my expert opinion, Mr. -- will you just

say this is a subscriber activity report?

A It's the subscriber activity with all the call

details. But yes, if you're saying that based on that one

line it's a subscriber activity report, I will say yes.

Q You'll say yes, it's a subscriber activity

report?

A Yes.

0 Yes, what? All right, we agree. This is

something we agree on. This is a subscriber activity

report , okay?

A It is a subscriber activity report, not the

subscriber activity report.
Q I never said it's the subscriber activity
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report.

A Okay.
Q That's not fair. Okay. Okay, so let me ask you

a question. Did Mr. Vignarajah give you his filings in

this case, the pleadings that he submitted to the Court?

A No.

MR. BROWN: Ch, okay. I'm going to show you

what we have marked as 44, Number 44. He gave you this

document, right? Oh, this is Mr. Vignarajah's and the

State's written arguments, correct?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Correct.
BY MR. BROWN:

Q Okay. Have you seen this?

A No.
Q All right. This is already in the record but

I'll introduce it as Petitioner's Exhibit PC2-44.
(State arguments marked for identification as

Defendant's Exhibit No. PC2-44. )

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Your Honor, may we approach?

THE COURT: You may.
(At 4:18:52 p.m., Counsel approached the bench and

the following occurred:)

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Excuse me, Mr. Brown, could you

move over a little bit?

MR. BROWN: Sure. You don't have enough room?
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MR. VIGNARAJAH: The reason I'm approaching this

time, Your Honor, is that I think Mr. Brown is now

attempting to impeach the witness based on a lawyer's

statement in a motion. I think that is improper

impeachment.
More broadly, Your Honor, I am trying to be as

civil about this as possible, but I think Mr. Brown is now

attempting to call my personal credibility and

professional credibility into question. I am going to ask

the Court that Mr. Brown not be permitted to impeach on

the basis of the document that he has not seen, but I'm

not really sure what to do about it at this stage because

Mr. Brown is (inaudible) —
MR. BROWN: How about this, Your Honor. I won't

use the. I'll refer to it as the State. But this is, they

have said in their arguments that that document is not a

subscriber activity report and that undercuts our whole

argument. And that is not true and I need to prove it and

this is where I prove it.
THE COURT: But he’s already, I mean it's not

like you're singing to a jury. I understand it —
MR. BROWN: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: — as a total disconnect as to how

the Defense sees these —
MR. BROWN: I'll do it very quickly.
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MR. VIGNARAJAH: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: — how Respondent sees these

documents and how the State sees the documents.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Mr. Brown is, sir —
THE COURT: And how the State views these

documents, they're diametrically opposed.

MR. BROWN: He's gotten so much latitude in his

crosses and now all of sudden I'm restricted?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Two things — one, Your Honor,

I have never taken a shot at Mr. Brown himself as opposed

to the evidence that he has put on; and number two, Your

Honor, this is something that is certainly a subject of

argument as to whether or not the arguments that the State

has made is, you know, correct or sound, but I don’t know

that this is matter for evidentiary consideration.

THE COURT: So your specific objection is the

use of your consolidated response.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: The State's pleadings, that's

right.

THE COURT: What portion of the response were

you intent on using, Mr. Brown?

MR. BROWN: I wanted the portions where the

State says that this document is not a subscriber activity

report over and over again.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: I didn't say it over and over
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again, Your Honor.
MR. BROWN: I'm impeaching this witness. I ’m

trying to impeach this witness. This is important.
THE COURT: How do you impeach him with

something he didn't — he's not responsible for?

MR. BROWN: It happens ail the time.

THE COURT: But he's not responsible.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: You can criticize —
MR. BROWN: Asia McClain was impeached with

things that she didn't even know about and had no

responsibility for. It just, we have to keep the same

standards.
THE COURT: I'm trying to.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Your Honor, it's the State's

argument. It's just the State's argument to pleading.

MR. BROWN: Yeah.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: And you can argue it all you

want, but it is improper.
MR. BROWN: I have done this in other cases

before in federal court.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Somebody probably should have

objected. But Mr. Brown, you've now made two references

to my involvement in this case. I understand what you're

doing and, you know, in as polite and as cordial I can

that this time I do need to object.
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MR. BROWN: May I — how about -- I have a

proposal. I won't mention his name. I'll say the State's

pleadings.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: It’s a little late now, Mr.

Brown. No disrespect, you know exactly what you're doing.
THE COURT: It's your way of parsing it out

differently, simply saying that the State contends.
MR. BROWN: In this document, how about just in

this document?

THE COURT: Your objection is the use of the

document.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: It's the use of the document.

It's the —
MR. BROWN: What if I pull the page and not make

any —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Can I see the page that you're

referring to?

MR. BROWN: I believe it's 33.

THE COURT: Here, here. (Inaudible).
MR. VIGNARAJAH: If I could see it?

MR. BROWN: Sure.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Yes, Your Honor. We were

referring to subscriber activity reports and we were

referring to them the way they were used here at the very

top of the page, subscriber activity reports.
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This is a —
MR. BROWN: Well, let’s read it (inaudible).
MR. VIGNARAJAH: I certainly will. I certainly

will. And it is in capitalized. The (inaudible)

argument, cell phone records relied on by the State’s

expert and attributed to evidence at trial were not

subscriber activity reports. Both those letters are

capitalized.
Down further, they had no blacked out columns,

they had none of the codes discussed in the boilerplate

legend, they lacked a column titled Location. Exactly the

argument we put (inaudible). Accordingly it is flatly

erroneous to say that the statement (inaudible)

reliability of incoming calls which relates to subscriber

activity reports. Again capitalized, referencing the item

that we discussed at the time.
Their argument, Your Honor, was

altogether different records used by the State. Indeed

the subscriber activity reports — in quotes — were

neither identified as exhibits nor admitted into evidence.

This was neither identified as an exhibit nor entered into

evidence.
MR. BROWN: Subscriber activity reports were —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: What is admitted into evidence

were cell phone records accompanied by a certificate of
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authenticity signed by an AT&T security analyst and relied

upon by the State’s expert who himself was employed by

AT&T as a radio frequency engineer.
This is a sleight of hand that is an attempt to

use words to --
MR. BROWN: That’s a sleight of hand. It's used

to mislead.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: So we can certainly argue that.

It's just not a basis for impeachment.

THE COURT: All right, I'm going to sustain the

objection of the use of the exhibit or that as the

pleading itself because it's simply a pleading, but —
MR. BROWN: Your Honor, I object. Can you hear

it from my side? This is my argument. The State is

taking the position — it says the cell phone records

relied upon by the State's expert and entered into

evidence, which is those, the ones that we've just been

talking about that this gentleman just said are subscriber

activity reports.

He just said that those are subscriber activity

reports. The State has taken the position that they are

not subscriber activity reports. I've got a serious

problem with that and to me that ’s —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Except I ’m referring to the

document that is directly above and is pictured there that
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says, has the blacked out columns and it's capitalized.

MR. BROWN: No. You're actually referred to

Syed’s argument. You're referring to the cell phone

records relied upon by the State's expert and entered into

evidence at trial.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: That's right.
MR. BROWN: It's not those records. It is not.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: It's Exhibit 31 was what was

relied upon and entered into evidence. Exhibit —
MR. BROWN: Yeah. Can I show that Exhibit 31

are subscriber activity reports? That’s the center of my

case.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Exhibit 31 is not this

document.

MR. BROWN: It ’s the subscriber activity report

that he’s talking about.

THE COURT: Is there some other way of doing

that or asking that question without using the pleading as

a —
MR. BROWN: Okay.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: I think he’s made his point

actually and that was --
MR. BROWN: I have not made my point, Your

Honor, maybe if there's some ambiguity --
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Okay, that's fine. You can
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(inaudible). I'm just objecting to (inaudible).
MR. BROWN: No, I think I should — I don't see

why I can't use this. Everyone’s been able to use all

kinds of documents to impeach and I should be able to do

the same.

THE COURT: I think this is slightly different

because it's a pleading. It's a, you know, it's what —
MR. BROWN: It's a legal document. I think this

has more authenticity than other things we’ve seen.

THE COURT: But it's the State's theory of the

case. It's their — it's lawyer. So I'm going to sustain

the objection, note your objection, but if you want to go

about it another way you can.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Thank you, Your Honor.
(At 4;27:01 p.m., Counsel returned to trial tables

and the following occurred in open court:)

MR. BROWN: Okay.
THE COURT: And we should take that down.

BY MR. BROWN:

Q Okay. Let's go back to the subscriber activity

report that we just discussed. This is the subscriber

activity report, correct?

A That's a fax cover sheet.
Q Is that a subscriber activity report?

A That is the header at the top. I would call
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them call detail records with cell site.
Q Is this a subscriber activity report, yes or no?

A That is the header at the top of the page, yes.

But I would call them the call detail reports or CDRs.

Q Is this a subscriber activity report?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Objection.

THE COURT: Overruled; it's cross.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: I don’t know how to

answer it any other way.
BY MR. BROWN:

Q You don't know if this is a — this document

that says subscriber activity report at the head of it,

you don’t know if this is a subscriber activity report?

A Like I said the header of that report is

subscriber activity. If that’s what AT&T is calling it,

I'm telling you when my unit testifies when we talk to the

carriers we call those call detail reports or CDRs.
Q Of course, there are different names for it.

But in 1999 — this isn't 1999 now, is it?

A No.
Q And you're not an AT&T employee, are you?

A No.
Q But this was called a subscriber activity report

when it was put out by AT&T in 1999, right?

A Yes, that's what I've testified to.
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Q Okay, okay.

A They've clearly marked it as a subscriber

activity on the first page.
Q Have you examined what was introduced at trial

as State's Exhibit 31?

A Yes.
Q And would you agree with me that State's Exhibit

31 was a critical piece of evidence that established the

cell tower locations in this case?

A Can you refresh me on what 31 is?

Q Okay. Do you have it in your pile there?

A It's not marked with the exhibit numbers.
MR. BROWN: Okay. Let ’s pull up State's Exhibit

31. Okay. It starts with a certification and then second

page — do you know what that second — can you tell me

where that second page is from?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: This is the second

page? This is the subscriber sheet.
BY MR. BROWN:

Q Well, wait. Let's go back. Have you reviewed

this document?

A Yes.
Q Okay. How is this document — what's this

document made up of? Tell me.

A The subscriber sheet and then the, I believe
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that 31 is the longer version or the more detailed version

if you will. Well, 1 can't even say more detailed. It's

also a subscriber activity report that's listed at the top

and it has like the type codes and the dialed number and

the -- it would be State’s Exhibit 5.

Q It would be State's Exhibit 5, okay. I’m not

sure what you're referring to as State's Exhibit 5. But

this, Exhibit 31, this is Trial Exhibit 31, would you

agree with me that it contains subscriber activity

reports?

A Can you go to —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Objection, Your Honor. Could

we ask the attorney to show Exhibit 5 to the witness so he

knows what he's referring to?

MR. BROWN: Would it help to have a hard copy of

it?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Of 31, yes.

THE COURT: It's actually PC2-17 to confuse

things, but —
MR. BROWN: PC2-17. Madam Clerk, can we —
THE CLERK: 17.

THE COURT: PC2-17 frQm yesterday or two days

ago. To expedite things do you just want to use my copy?

MR. BROWN: Okay. Sorry about that. We've got

It right here. Here you go. Just take a minute and
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review it.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Okay. I'm ready.

BY MR. BROWN:

Q Have you had a chance to review that?

A Yes.
Q Okay. Now the State in its multiple -- well,

the State in its legal filings has asserted the position

that that document and the pages inside of it are not

subscriber activity reports. Do you agree with that?

A I would classify it as a call detail report, but

as you've shown on the screen the first or last page

depending on how you look at it, the header definitely

says subscriber activity report just like the other one.

Q Okay.
A Or subscriber activity.
Q So if somebody were to say, hypothetically

speaking, the flaw in Syed's argument is that the cell

phone records relied upon the State's expert and entered

into evidence at trial were not subscriber activity

reports.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Objection, Your Honor. May we

approach again?

MR. BROWN: Now if you —
THE COURT: You may.

(At 4:33:47 p.m., Counsel approached the bench and
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the following occurred:)

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Your Honor.

MR. BROWN: Did I not do it right?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: I think up to now you've been

fine, Mr. Brown, but you're now just about to read the

statement from the pleading and ask him now, completely

divorced from context without him having an opportunity to

read the entire document, trying to now impeach him.
I presume your question is if someone

hypothetically said X would that be wrong? And I think

that is the same thing and I —
MR. BROWN: (Inaudible) a lot of questions like

that.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: If you want to do it in

argument you're welcome to. I expect you in closing to

say that Mr. Vignarajah's wrong in his pleading, and I

will certainly stand up and defend it. This is not a

proper basis for impeachment and, Mr. Brown, I believe

respectfully you know that. And the Court has ruled and

the State would now renew its objection.

THE COURT: I don't know what the next question

was but

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Was that going to be your next

question?

MR. BROWN: I want to say whether it's correct
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that subscriber activity —
THE COURT: Well, you've already asked him that

-- you can always ask him the State has asserted that it's

a —
MR. 3ROWN: Okay. I’m like almost done. I

just, with this small segment.

THE COURT: Just stay away from the pleading.
MR. BROWN: Okay, okay.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Thank you.

MR. BROWN: I tried to do it right.
(At 4:35:02 p.m., Counsel returned to trial tables

and the following occurred in open court:)

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You're welcome.
BY MR. BROWN:

Q Okay. So if we — and you have this document

which I'll call Exhibit 31, State's Exhibit 31 you have in

front of you, we agree that it contains subscriber

activity reports, yes?

A It has subscriber activity, yes.
Q Yes. And if I were to tell you that this

particular exhibit was entered into evidence at Mr. Syed's

trial and if it were sent back to the jury box where the

jury deliberated at Mr. Syed's trial, if I were to tell

you that would that mean that parts of subscriber activity

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICE
-466-2033 2007 W. Rogers Avenue Baltimore, MD 21209 667-210-2925

Find links to evidence described above and many more original documents from this case
                at The Undisclosed Wiki     https://www.adnansyedwiki.com/PCR2016

T-H-A-N-K-S C-A-L-E-B



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

258
ADMAN SYED v. STATE OF MARYLAND

February 5, 2016 BEFORE MARTIN P. WELCH, JUDGE

reports had been admitted into trial?

A I would say that based on the cell phone

analysis that was done this type of report, if you want to

call it subscriber activity report version 2 or version 1,

has the cell site and sector information. Had Abe had the

other subscriber activity report version 1, whichever one

you want to call that unredacted he would have come to the

exact same results as far as the cell site analysis goes.

Q Okay. So you're not really —
A The fact the other one, the other subscriber

activity report being redacted, having the cell sites not

included or blacked out, Abe could not perform a cell site

analysis with that version of the subscriber activity

report.

Q Right, so with all due respect you didn't really

answer my question.

A This is what was testified to as far as the

location, the general locations of the phone. This is

what was pertinent to Abe's testimony.
Q And that was a subscriber activity report?

A It's a version of the subscriber activity

report.

Q Okay. So a subscriber activity report went back

to the jury?

A A version of one. Not the version that the key
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is talking about.

Q And there's multiple versions of subscriber

activity reports; would you agree to that?

A They have different columns, yes.

Q Yeah, so multiple versions of subscriber

activity reports. You prefer one — you think one version

is sort of more of a subscriber activity report than this

version, which is kind of less of a subscriber activity

report, even though they both say subscriber activity

report across the top.

A I don't know that — one has more columns, one

has no cell tower and sector information, one does

unredacted.

MR. BROWN: Okay. So, but we have now

established the fact — and I apologize it's taken me a

very long time to establish one fact, but that fact is

that the document behind here — if you go to the next

one.

And this document right there is a subscriber

activity report and this document went into evidence.
Okay, I hope I've established that.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: It's one version of a

subscriber activity report

BY MR. BROWN:

Q One version.
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A — with cell site and sector. They're both call

detail records, CDRs.

MR. BROWN: All right. Now let’s go to the fax

cover sheet and zoom into the very top across there.

Down, down, down in the box, the top of the box right

there.

Now can you read that portion that’s underlined?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: How to read

subscriber activity reports.
BY MR. BROWN:

Q Okay. Now is it your testimony today that that

does not apply to certain subscriber activity reports?

A I believe it applies to one version and not the

other because the things it's talking about do not occur

in Trial Exhibit 31 or PC2-17, I guess.
Q Okay. So you only read that to apply to one

type of subscriber activity report?

A I don’t see type columns. I don't see feature

columns, location columns. I don't see any of that on

this document you handed me up here, 17.
Q But there are some, would you agree with me that

there are some instances at least where this does apply to

the kind of subscriber activity reports that I like to

call subscriber activity reports?

A I don't see one column that is talked about in
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that that is referred to in that box that is in this

subscriber activity report, this version of subscriber

activity report, 17.
Q All right, you don't see the columns, I get it.

Doesn't this apply to some characteristics and factors of

subscriber activity reports as I call them subscriber

activity reports? Think about it. Well, let me propose

one possibility. The part where it has the number sign,

remember that scenario we just went over where Mr.
Waranowitz got it wrong?

A Right, yes.
Q And we agreed on that. And what Mr. Waranowitz

said, if I’d have had those instructions I wouldn't have

made that mistake, right, because you saw his email.
A He wouldn't have made a mistake on the direction

of the call, yes.
Q Right, right. So if he'd have had this

instruction he wouldn't have made the mistake. So in that

particular instance this instruction applies to those

subscriber activity reports, correct?

A I can't even go that far because it says "when

SP is noted in type column." Type column does not exist

in here. The dialed number sign does not exist in here.

The CFO in the feature column does not exist in this.
The only thing out of that — you're taking one
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part, like one basic — it's not even a word. One thing

that says, for instance number sign and a telephone

number, this is an incoming call that was not answered and

then forwarded to voice mail. He could have taken that

information from that one paragraph and applied it to this

and that’s it. Everything else that I see on there does

not apply, does not exist in this report.
Q But Mr. Waranowitz explicitly said these

instructions would have helped him.
A About the call going to voice mail.
Q Yeah.
A Instead of versus the subscriber calling out to

the voice mail.

Q Yeah. It wouldn't have helped —
A Nothing about the cell site analysis.
Q It wouldn't have helped him with like

everything, of course not. Like it wouldn't help him tell

time, you know, it wouldn't help him dial his phone, but

it did help, it would have helped him in his

interpretation, right?

A His --
Q At least for this one problem.

A His specialty is the RF side, the connection

from the phone to the tower where the towers are located.

That's why he utilizes this report because it has the cell
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site and tower. All of that testimony about the general

location of the phone was correct. Interpreting the

records as far as that call being forwarded to the voice

mail platform or dialed out, that's exactly what he's

talking about had he seen that.
Q All right, let's look at some of these calls.

You've analyzed these calls?

A Yes.
Q You feel like you know them pretty well?

A Yes.
MR. BROWN: All right. I imagine you do. So

let's look at calls number, and I think they are on, I

believe from the 16th. So forgive me if this takes me a

moment to find. Can you find call number 6 on the 16th?

It's four from the back, four pages from the bottom.
THE COURT: We're still Exhibit 31?

MR. BROWN: No, Your Honor, Exhibit 15 now. I'm.

sorry, Your Honor.

And do you have this? We call it Exhibit 15.

Let me just make sure you have the right one.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: These are kind of

small.

BY MR. BROWN:

Q Are you able to read that?

A That's why I have the glasses on.
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MR. BROWN: Okay. I might have to borrow your

glasses in a few minutes.

Okay, so can you -- okay, can you find where it

starts January 15th -- yes.
Apologies, Your Honor.
Can you zoom in on that a little? Okay, good.

No, no, no, other way, other way, other way. Down, down.

No, no, no, you had it. Okay, push it down. Right there,

right there. Perfect, perfect. Okay, can you kind of

zoom in on lines 4 and 6?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Objection, Your Honor. I

believe that Mr. Brown intends to now ask questions beyond

the scope of both the direct examination, the argument

that they asserted the post-conviction court are now

referring to records beyond the January 13th date.

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, I'm asking questions --
MR. VIGNARAJAH: If I misunderstand I will

withdraw my objection.

MR. BROWN: Yeah. I’m asking questions about

whether instructions apply to these phone records.

THE COURT: Overrule the objection. Let's try

to move on.
BY MR. BROWN:

Q Okay. Would you agree with me, line 4, do you

see line 4 there?
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A Yes.

Q Okay. That call pings off of a particular

tower. What’s the tower that it pings off of?

A D125C.

Q Right, okay. And two lines below that there's

another call, call 6 that pings off of tower L651C,

correct?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Can you do the range

from like 4 to 8? Thank you.
Which line were you asking about?

BY MR. BROWN:

Q Okay, line 4 —

A Yes.
Q — and line 6.
A Yes.

MR. BROWN: Okay. And if you can highlight the

tower locations in line 4 and 6 or circle them. Yeah,

perfect, perfect.

Okay, you see those two tower locations. Are

you able to determine where they’re located?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: If I had the tower

list, yes.

MR. BROWN: All right, I think I got it. The tower

list would be Exhibit 36. Exhibit 36, if I could borrow

that from the clerk. That's it right there.
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Okay. I want you to tell me where those two

cell towers are.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Can you put them back

up? One's Connecticut Avenue, Washington, D.C. That's

the one 125.
BY MR. BROWN:

Q All right.

A And 651 is Woodiawn Drive, the (inaudible).

Q Okay. So are you familiar with the geography

around here?

A Not really.
Q Okay. Do you know where Dupont Circle is?

A D.C.
Q Okay. Do you know where Woodiawn is?

A Yes.

0 Where?

A Off of 695.
Q Okay. Do you know how far apart those two

points are ?

A I do not.

Q Well, how long, how much time is there in

between those two calls?

A 30 minute, a little over 30 or right at 30

minutes.
Q 27 minutes. 27 minutes?
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A Yes.
Q Do you know whether the owner of this cell phone

had a helicopter?

A I do not.
Q Okay. Would you take my word for it that it is

impossible to drive from Woodlawn to Washington, D.C. in

27 minutes?

A I don't know. How many miles is it?

Q Do you have a cell phone?

A Yes.

Q Do you want to look it up on Google?

A The Judge will yell at me for using my phone.
MR. BROWN: May he have — okay.
Allen, are you able to do that?

THE COURT: Well, why don't you just proffer

just the distance.
MR. BROWN: I'm going to proffer that by driving

that that would take approximately an hour if, probably

slightly more than an hour. And I think the Court would

take judicial notice that that's about correct.
State, would you agree with that?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Your Honor, the State is fine

with Defense as a proffer.
THE COURT: Duly noted.
MR. BROWN: Okay. So we will stipulate to the
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fact that it takes one hour to drive from one point to

another.

Now can you please tell me how one phone call

could have occurred? How could this have occurred?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: The only — I'd have

to do some research. I don't know that I could go back

and do it now, but I’d have to do research on D125. I

know Dupont Circle is a stop on the Metro, so I have seen

where they'll just put one address for a tower and it

includes all the towers they have along the Metro.

So I don't know if that could be a possibility.

I don't know. I'd have to see how many miles. I don't

know if you’re including traffic. I mean, I'd have to

just do some more research. I can't answer it just on the

face. That would raise me to do more research into that

series of calls.

BY MR. BROWN:

Q It would. And would you agree with me that

calls 4 and 5 are the same call?

A Yes.
Q Right, because they're at the exact same time.

They’re at 11:25:03, right?

A Yeah, it's an incoming call that got sent to the

voice mail platform.

Q An incoming call, exactly. It's an incoming
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call and that incoming call is jamming you up a little

bit, right? That's a little problem. It's a little

problem. You just said you’d might have to do a little

bit more research.

A Yes.
Q Because it's impossible. Assuming Mr. Syed did

not have a helicopter at the time it would be impossible

for his phone to be in Woodlawn at one moment and then 27

minutes later in Dupont Circle.

All right, I've got a few more topics I'd like

to explore. Let’s talk about your switch theory. You're

saying that — and I hate to keep going back to those

instructions, but this is our issue and we stand by it.

Back to this instruction.
Now there's the critical line there it talks

about outgoing calls only are reliable for location

status, and what you’re saying is location status actually

means the column headed by location 1, right?

A Correct.

Q Okay. I mean it doesn't say like outgoing calls

only are reliable for column headed location 1, but it

says location status, right?

A Right. It doesn't say anything about the I-cell

column which is the initial cell or the cell tower that

was used. It doesn't say outgoing calls are only reliable
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for the proper cell ID.

Q Right, it says location. And one way to

interpret the word location is that location means what it

says, right? That’s one way of interpreting it.

A I believe it's referring to the column listed

location.

Q Okay. So you think like when you’re doing your

work, like your cell tower work, do you often refer to --
when you say like, you know, someone calls you up and

says, you know, Agent Fitzgerald, we need to figure out

some location data on, you know, the suspect’s cell phone,

right.

Let's say someone says that. Agent Fitzgerald,

we need to find location information on the suspect's cell

phone. Are you thinking oh, they want me to figure out

which switch it is or are you thinking oh, they want me to

locate the guy ’s phone?

A If they have cell tower I’m sure they want me to

determine what tower that phone was utilizing and where

that tower was located.

Q So in that context location means location of

the phone?

A In that context, right, they want to know where

the phone could have been at a certain time or date.

Q Because they don't really care like where the
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is, like no one asks you like where the switch is.
Does anyone care about that?

A Yes, they do.
Q In practical law enforcement?

A Yes, they do.

Q They do?

A Yes.

Q Okay, but not in a case like this, correct?

A No. They'd want to know the location of the

towers.

Q Okay. Let me draw a little picture on the

(inaudible) and see if you agree with this. All right, a

switch is like a hub for a cellular system, right?

A Yes.

Q Okay. So if I draw a picture here, write in —

all right, that's the switch. And there are lots of cell

towers that can attach to a switch, correct?

A Yes.
Q And they're hardwired to the switch, correct?

A Not necessarily.
Q Really?

A No.
Q Okay. Well, I didn't know that but are they

sometimes hardwired?
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A That's (inaudible).

Q I'll bet in 1999 they were definitely hardwired,

weren't they?

A There's a lot of microwave back calls, so --
Q Okay. Well, so you've got your switch and then

running off the switch, you know, it's like a spider

(inaudible) and then these are the cell, these are the

towers. Okay, right?

A Okay.

Q Right. And the switch that we almost always see

in these documents is which switch?

A WB443 which I'm sure is West Baltimore 443.
There’s also a Baltimore 2.

Q Let's double check that. I'm not sure that's

quite right. Let me show you what's already been

introduced as PC2-40. See if that helps you tell me which

switch we're talking about.

A Are you talking about the location column?

Q I'm sorry, I called it a switch, but yeah, the

location column. Location 1, it's actually the location 1

column.

A It ’s DC4196 which is a system ID for AT&T in

Baltimore, Washington 2-B.
Q Okay. And you know about this switch, right?

A No. I don’t know about the switch.
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Q You know that it used to be called the dog bone?

A Okay.

Q Because there were two metropolitan areas right

next to each other, Baltimore and D.C., and it covered the

whole area between the two of them, thus dog bone.

A Okay, I get the reference.
Q I thought it was kind of neat. So if we're

looking at phone records, right, and it says that theSe

phone records when through a different switch altogether,

a whole different switch, it might for example as you said

it shows that those phone calls went through the Atlanta

switch, right?

A Correct.
Q And then you would look at the records and —

well, tell me this. How often does that problem come up

from your discussions with your AT&T experts?

A What problem?

Q The problem of the wrong switch being on the

records.

A The wrong switch?

Q Or the inaccurate switch.
A I don't know that it's ever inaccurate.

Q Well, it's unreliable when it's an incoming

call.

A For a person's location, yes. It can, not
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necessarily —
Q A person's location like location of their

phone?

A Like how I testified. If I'm provisioned in the

Atlanta switch, I arrive in Baltimore. I never power up

my phone or I never go on network --
Q Right.
A — the call record or the subscriber activity

record is going to show the call, an incoming call going

to the Atlanta switch. What they're saying is you can’t

determine that I'm located in Atlanta based on that.
Q Okay, okay. So what I’m saying though is that

if on an incoming call we cannot rely on that switch

information as being accurate, right — that’s your

theory, right? When there's an incoming call we look at

these records, we look at the column that says location 1

and we can’t rely on that information when it's an

incoming call.
A I would not use these toll records basically to

determine a location. They're strictly, I would use them

strictly as toll records.
Q These are, you call these toll records?

A Right, because they don't have any cell site

location.
Q They used to be subscriber activity reports and
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now they're toll records.

A Well, subscriber, I'm trying to distinguish

between the two different subscriber activity reports

we've talked about.

Q Okay, okay. But you're saying that the

instructions here, instructions here say that for an

incoming call the switch information may not be relied

upon. It shall not — it will not be considered reliable

information, right?

A Reliable for location.
Q For location.
A Correct. And I do believe that my — no, AT&T

didn't ask me to help write their, you know, the

instruction key or anything like that but I believe that ’s

what they were referring to in talking to the people I

know at AT&T, putting our heads together.
And the fact that most people in the '90s did

just get what I will call the toll record version of

subscriber activity and they didn't want people going out

and arresting people based on the location column.

Q On the location column. So you’re saying there

was a danger that someone could be arrested — let's say

there's a bank robbery, you know, someone could be

arrested based on the location column? Like okay, there

was a bank robbery in Baltimore. Well, Mr. Brown, we've
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got you caught here because this column shows that you

were in the Baltimore/Washington area so you must have

been guilty of that bank robbery; is that what you mean?

A Or the opposite. That they're looking to see if

he was in the Baltimore area and he had a bunch, a series

of incoming calls and they all showed the Atlanta switch,

his home switch, that doesn't mean that he wasn't in

Baltimore if his phone was turned off.

Q Well, it isn't also possible that location

actually refers to the site, they're the location where

the phone is?

A It absolutely does not. The switch is just like

on your drawing. There’s switches connected to hundreds

if not thousands of towers. They could be anywhere within

that region where that switch covers, just like your

drawing showed all the spider web of towers coming off of

there. If all I knew was the switch I wouldn't know which

direction on your paper the person would be. It'd just be

in that —
Q Okay.
A — the call got to that part of the switch never

making it out to a tower to provide actual location of the

telephone.

Q Answer me this though. There's two kinds of

telephone records that we've been talking about. They're
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both called subscriber activity reports but they're

different. One is redacted and one is not redacted,

right?

A Correct.
MR. BROWN: Okay. Can we put those side by

side?

All right, and this is just a sample. But would

you agree that these are, this is data in different

formats from the same calls?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: If you unredacted

this black part, if they had sent a court order originally

with this black redacted part, had they not redacted this

initial cell and the last cell column, Abe could have

performed the exact same analysis and would have come up

with the exact same results that he did when he testified

in court.
BY MR. BROWN:

Q Right. But would you agree to me that you could

find, from these two records you could find the same phone

call in each record, right? Like if you knew of one

specific phone call you could look at it on one record in

one format and then you could go to the other record in a

different format, but you could match up the calls, right?

A You should be able to, yes.
Q Right. Okay, so why don't you show me how you
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would do that? Can you show me how to do that?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: If you go to the 13th

we can start at the call right after midnight. You're

right there. Just zoom in on the bottom.

BY MR. BROWN:

Q How about this? I'll pick the call, okay?

A Shocking.

Q I'm sorry.
A You were giving me the option.

Q Maybe we can meet in the middle?

A We're talking about the 13th, just right there.

Zoom in on the bottom.
Q Okay, okay. All right, okay. On the 13th,

let's do this. All right, January 13, call number 9.
Okay. Now show me, how would we find that in the other

records?

A Go to the 13th and zoom in at the same time.

Q If I were to show you the document can you find

the matching — I'm pointing to call number 9, Exhibit 15.
A The date column's not on here.

Q What's that?

A I don't see — let me look at my version. You

cut off the dates to confuse me. So I have it.
Q You do.

A Yes.
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Q Okay.
A Would you like me to —
Q Yeah.
A It’s 8:04:44. It's 32 seconds long, terminated

at — it has the terminating time which is 8:05 which that

— correct — does not have. And it says it's the

location is DC4196 Washington 2-B.
Q Okay.
A Calling is 03 — yeah. So the phone number on

here has no hyphens. The phone number on the other

subscriber activity report has hyphens and has all the

additional codes. So it’s I guess a more expanded

version.
Q Now I would imagine that if you were to go

through all the switch locations, right, and all of the

cell tower locations for all the incoming calls, that

might highlight some of the inaccuracies of these records;

would you agree with that?

A Well, we don't have — the cell site on this we

don't have. It's redacted.
Q Exactly.
A So we can't marry up the cell site. But I did

look at all the calls on the 13th, and all the calls that

were on the 13th are on both reports.
MR. BROWN: Okay, but this is my question. If
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we can as you said if we can marry up the records.
(The Court briefly handles an unrelated matter.)

THE COURT: Sir, you may continue.
MR. BROWN: Your Honor, may we have a brief

restroom break?

THE COURT: Let me see you first though.

MR. 3ROWN: Okay.
(At 5:09:32 p.m., Counsel approached the bench and

the following occurred:)

THE COURT: I think the new shift (inaudible)

throw Dave Irwin out because he was —
MR. BROWN: They're throwing Dave out.
THE COURT: He's been treated worse.
MR. BROWN: You always want to prepare your

experts, you know, or tell them don't get thrown out of

the courtroom.
THE COURT: He’s been thrown out of worse bars

than this.

MR. BROWN: Forgive me, Your Honor. I was

wondering if we could do a quick restroom break.
THE COURT: Well, here's the rub.
MR. BROWN: Yes.
THE COURT: I'm really pushing the limits. I’m

going to stay as long as you want. We're pushing probably

the limits of staff and I'm just thinking out loud. He
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doesn't want to be involved anymore this weekend, right?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: I can find out, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Because obviously you’re not quite

finished your cross.

MR. BROWN: I'm still going, Your Honor.
There’s a lot to talk about.

THE COURT: And just a weird thought of —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Testimony on Saturday?

THE COURT: No.

MR. BROWN: Now I’m really angry.

THE COURT: Some sort of video, just asking.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: No, no, no.
THE COURT: Use the electronics, some sort of

video if he's available in Atlanta on Monday morning or

how are we going to do it? I mean it ’s just a thought.
The best case is go a little bit longer and he's still got

to come back Monday morning anyway. The other piece is do

we accommodate him and let him go home and then try to

pick a time and set up the logistics, you know.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Do you mind if I talk to him,

Your Honor, if I may, his availabilities?

THE COURT: Sure. And you want to deal with

your expert as well?

MR. BROWN: I think my expert just got kicked

out of the courtroom.
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THE COURT: No, he's safe. He's not happy, but

he's safe.

MR. BROWN: Can't we release him?

THE COURT: Yeah. I'm not sure how much he

needed to listen, but yeah.

MR. BROWN: Okay, let me take my bathroom break

and we might be able to figure out some of these.

THE COURT: Figure out something, yeah.

MR. BROWN: Can we just take a five-minute
recess?

THE COURT: Yeah, I'm not holding David here,

but sure he can —
MR. BROWN: Okay.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Yeah, (inaudible).
THE COURT: And then can we ask Ms. Stacy

(phonetic) and Ms. Angelina Plummer (phonetic) — if

Stacy's back there or Angelina Plummer, Ms. Plummer are

back there maybe they can come to the bench as well.
THE LAW CLERK: Okay.

THE COURT: All right.
MR. BROWN: So may I be excused for (inaudible),

please?

THE COURT: Yes.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: And Mr. Brown --

(At 5:12:06 p.m., Counsel returned to trial tables
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and the following occurred in open court:)

THE COURT: Court’s going to take a very brief

recess. And Agent Fitzgerald, just you can step down if
you wish.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Can I have a word

with you right before you take a — or when you take a

break?
THE COURT: Absolutely, yes.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: I want to show you

something.
THE COURT: Well, you want to show Counsel

something, but yes.
SPECIAL ACENT FITZGERALD: No, I want to show

you the possible, what I just discovered.
THE COURT: Well, what, you discuss that with

Mr. Vignarajah. All right.
MR. BROWN: Your Honor, I ask that he not be

allowed to talk about his testimony (inaudible).
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: It's not about my

testimony (inaudible).
THE LAW CLERK: Your Honor, he just made a

discovery and he wants to talk to (inaudible).
MR. VIGNARAJAH: We’re not talking about it

though. (Inaudible).
(At 5:13:42 p.m., State Counsel and Witness
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approached the bench and the following occurred:)

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Your Honor, I just wanted to do

it in the presence of the Court.
THE COURT: Scheduling.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Agent, the people have enjoyed

your testimony so much that there's a possibility you may

be needed on Monday. You’re not under subpoena, but the

Court and the State and Defense Counsel would appreciate

it if you'd be available.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: As long as to -- I

mean I can also get into formal, but my 2E letter expired

today. As long as you'll honor the 2E letter and the

restrictions to that on Monday so that I have the same

protections under the 2E letter.

THE COURT: And I'm not familiar with what the

2E letter is.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: It's actually a request from

the State to ensure the limits of his testimony, and the

State is fine by —
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: So they don't go into

investigative techniques, like they just don't basically

go crazy —
THE COURT: Right, okay. Right, right. Yeah.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: -- what we do, like

active investigations. I know how it's a hotbed topic.
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THE COURT: Yes.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: And in that case I'll wait for

Defense Counsel. We may be able to end now and do that.

And I just want to put the 2E record discussion on the

record with Defense Counsel. (Inaudible).

THE COURT: Okay. But you're going to give some

thought as to -- I’m more concerned about and sort of

personally as well as the, you expected to get out of here

tonight.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Right. I'm on a

flight. I'm used to flying back and forth everywhere.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: So you'll stay?

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: I’ll just go. I'll

go home and come back Monday.
THE COURT: Okay, I’m not feeling as bad.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: No, no. It's not a

big deal. I fly all the time. So as long as — I mean, I

think I can get an early flight Monday and get here.

THE COURT: And what I promise you is, David

will scream but maybe try to get you on first just to do

some continuity, so we should start you at 9:30.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: All right.
And then —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Stop.
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SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Yeah, okay.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Thank you.
THE COURT: So I'm going to stay on the bench.

As soon as everybody comes back --
(At 5:15:29 p.m., State Counsel and Witness returned

to trial tables and the following occurred in open court:

MR. BROWN: Your Honor, should we approach?

THE COURT: Please.
(At 5:17:28 p.m., Counsel approached che bench and

the following occurred:)

MR. VIGNARAJAH: It appears, I just wanted to

put this on the record. We did speak with Special Agent

Fitzgerald. I believe the record was still live.
THE COURT: It's been on.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: And he was able to confirm that

because we all have enjoyed his testimony so much that he

is able to return Monday morning. He also did request

that it ’s called a 2E letter be extended to Monday which

is just that he cannot reveal, as you probably know,

discuss —
MR. BROWN: (Inaudible).
MR. VIGNARAJAH: So what the State has indicated

that we will extend it to Monday. I don't actually know

who grants it, but bottom line is that the same things

that are covered today will be applicable Monday. Under
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those circumstances with that condition he's perfectly

fine to return on Monday.
So the State is happy to —
THE COURT: So does that work? And David's not

happy but —
MR. NIETO: When is he ever really truly happy?

THE COURT: Well, that's true.
MR. BROWN: (Inaudible), oh god.
THE COURT: So I mean if you'll handle him and

well, I guess with the promise — we've got to figure out

how to get this damn thing done, guys and lady. But the

thought is we'd go back in order as soon as —
MR. BROWN: Back to Irwin and then to him?

THE COURT: No, no, no. No, no. That after —
I think we owe him the courtesy. He's flying back in.

MR. BROWN: Right, right. That's fine.
THE COURT: To get Agent Fitzgerald off the

stand as early as we can on Monday, put David back on,

finish David up. And then I'm going to squeeze you as

much as I can to say I've heard enough or close to it, or

just you're going to have to speed it up. Because I’ve

got to give some time — so I mean just give it some

thought.
MR. BROWN: Right, right. I'll try to make it

more concise.
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MR. VIGNARAJAH: Can I suggest two things, Your

Honor, and if you can just bring the Special Agent up for

a moment. He did seem to indicate as you noticed that he

wanted to draw the State's attention to a particular

document.
I don't want him to discuss this with us over

the weekend and I'd like you to specifically direct him to

not talk about it with anyone on the record with respect

to this. He obviously is interested in bringing something

to our attention.
We'll take a look at it ourselves and we'll talk

to Defense Counsel about it, but I don't want there to be

any question that he talked to us about it over the

weekend. So could we just ask him to come up to the —
THE COURT: All right, so just so I'm clear that

whatever his surprise is he's not to discuss whatever that

is with anyone.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Exactly, exactly. You or the

State or the Defense or anyone else until —
THE COURT: Until Monday.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: — Monday.
MR. BROWN: Until Monday.

THE COURT: As much as he wants to now.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Right.
THE COURT: And it ’s not something we want to
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try to deal with tonight even after everybody's gone?

MR. BROWN: Why don't we do it now? I mean, you

know, if he thinks it's important —
THE COURT: Yeah, so why don’t we —
MR. NIETO: Maybe it's a good time just to break

and then we can speak with the agent on our own.
THE COURT: Yeah.
MR. BROWN: Well, what if the two of us are able

to —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: With respect to whatever's

happening, Your Honor, I’d like to do it on the record,

number one. And we can do it now on the record or we can

do it Monday on the record. Whenever -- and I don't know

what he's referring to, I genuinely do not.
THE COURT: Let me — let’s do this. Let's try

to get the people out of here. I'll give him his

sequester — well, (inaudible) he's an expert, but —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Yes. I’m —
THE COURT: So -- but and ask him to stick

around for a few minutes and then we'll come back up to

the bench while they're filing out and figure out what the

uh-oh is.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Thank you.
THE COURT: All right.
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(At 5:20:58 p.m., Counsel returned to trial tables

and the following occurred in open court:)

THE COURT: Agent, you may step down and just

step over to the side for one minute, please.

(At 5:21:06 p.m., witness stepped down.)
THE COURT: This is an appropriate time for us

to break. The Court will take its weekend recess and

we’ll reconvene Monday morning at 9:30 in the same

location. Thank you.
And let me see Counsel at the bench, please.
And Sheriff, would you — we’re done.

(At 5:21:36 p.m., Counsel approached the bench and

the following occurred:)

MR.
MR.
MR.
MR.

MR.
THE

MR.
THE

MR.

BROWN: Do you know what the issue is?

VIGNARAJAH: I don't. I don't.
BROWN: Do you know what the issue is?

VIGNARAJAH: No.
BROWN: Do you?

COURT: No, no. He is somewhat insistent.
BROWN: Okay.
COURT: Agent, would you come over, please?

VIGNARAJAH: And we are on the record, Your

Honor?

THE COURT: Yeah.
And let me put you right there in the middle,
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Agent. Agent, you sort of had — expressed that you

wanted to share something with the Court.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Yes. I’d like to

show —
THE COURT: And of course I think it's important

to share it with all of us.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: I’d like to show that

he handed me this document highlighted expressing that it

was January 13th. And you can see the dates are clearly

and the times are clearly knocked off of it and it doesn't

match. Like I have the original records in my — you can

compare. If you compare January 13th and look for the

series of calls starting at 8:05 p.m., this — basically

he set me up on the stand.

MR. BROWN: No, I didn’t mean to.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: You clearly handed me

— this says January 13th.
THE COURT: Hold on, hold on, hold on.
So your concern, Agent, is that —
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: He handed this to me

and said find the call.

THE COURT: What’s in evidence? What’s in

evidence is —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Wait, wait, wait. We’ve never

seen the document either, Your Honor, which is curious.
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MR. BROWN: Can I explain? What I meant to do

and perhaps I misspoke is I could not find the match up.

And when I handed you the document it was like this, but I

didn’t know — you're saying -- I didn't know, I didn't

tell you it was on this page.
And I'm telling you, I didn't --
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: You have the call

highlighted. The call you picked out was at 8:04. You

highlighted from 6:59 p.m. to 8:05. You handed me this

and said here you go, find the call on that sheet.
MR. BROWN: And there's — yeah.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: On that sheet on that

page.
MR. BROWN: If that's what I said I did not mean

to — and quite frankly I was surprised at how quickly you

found it, but —
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Because you know what

did the answer you wanted.
MR. BROWN: But you assumed, no, you assumed it

was on that page.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Well, how would I

know where the dates are since you cut them off?

MR. BROWN: That's precisely one of the points

(inaudible).

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Mr. Brown, did you share this

ACCUSCRI&ES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICE
-466-2033 2007 w. Rogers Avenue Baltimore, MD 21209 667-210-2925

Find links to evidence described above and many more original documents from this case
                at The Undisclosed Wiki     https://www.adnansyedwiki.com/PCR2016

T-H-A-N-K-S C-A-L-E-B



1
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

293

TMMWJII ' MIIWIIH

ADNAN SY£D v. STATE OF MARYLAND
February 5, 2016 BEFORE MARTIN P. WELCH, JUDGE

with the State in advance of trial or in advance of

(inaudible)?

MR. BROWN: Yeah.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: And what exhibit is it?

MS. HARVEY: The packet we had.

THE COURT: That's at this one.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: It’s not included in the

packet.

MS. HARVEY: The packet we were handed when we

first got (inaudible). I thought (inaudible)

MR. BROWN: It's the redacted (inaudible).
MS. HARVEY: But I think it's different because

I mean —
THE COURT: This one?

MR. BROWN: Ours is —
THE COURT: It’s this one.
MR. BROWN: The version that we have is — yes.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Could I compare, Your Honor?

So you’re saying this document (inaudible).

THE COURT: This is a copy of what I understood

was introduced as 40.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: We have not received PC-40 at

all, so that was not part of the original exposure, was

it? Last week you sent over, last Wednesday night you

disclosed a number of materials to the State.
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MR. BROWN: Right.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: And then we reviewed all of

those documents. This was not included. If you think I’m

wrong —
MR. BROWN: No, you're right. This was added at

the last minute. We realized —
THE COURT: Right, because that's why it's not

in the book. This was a new exhibit.
MR. BROWN: Right, yeah. This was added.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: This (inaudible) disclosed to

us.
MR. BROWN: I think we added it at the last

minute. We probably forgot to disclose it to you. You

have it. You have the document. These are the unredacted

phone — these are those same records that he's working

off of.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: They aren't the same

records.

MR. BROWN: Yeah, they are. They are.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Well, what does this purport to

be and why are you using records that are not original?

MR. BROWN: They’re the same records.
MS. HARVEY: Visually (inaudible), because this

is the information I think that when you were questioning

him about it he said this doesn't have the date on it.
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That was my understanding.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Yeah, it's like cut

off.

MR. BROWN: Right.

MS. HARVEY: So it seems as though these records

on this (inaudible) match up.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: I couldn’t even find,

I couldn’t —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: So they must be cut off. I

mean obviously they're cut off.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: But the series of

calls, I couldn't even find the series of calls in the

records I have. Like I looked for a series of calls that

happened at 7- -- the same series that he highlighted. I

went through all the dates I have and I couldn’t — I mean

I did a quick scan while you guys were on the sidebar.

It's almost like they — I don't know what

happened, but it's offensive.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Special Agent, I'm going to

just stop you right there. I'm going to stop you right

there. Mr. Brown is an officer of the court and I don't
want you to make any suggestions. Just please point out

that this document, for the record, Your Honor, this

document was not disclosed to us. Last week it was not

disclosed to us in advance of file.
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We would like an opportunity to make a photocopy

of this to compare it to whatever we do have to

(inaudible) to find out what — I'm sure there is an

explanation for it. I’m sure we can get to the bottom of

this. And I don't know why we're using this document as

opposed to the phone records that are (inaudible).
MR. BROWN: Can I explain what happened, what I

think happened?

THE COURT: But this is what was admitted. 40

is what was admitted.

MR. BROWN: It was admitted and you didn't

object to it. But I think what happened, we —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: That's because I thought it was

the phone records that we've been using all along.
MR. BROWN: Well, there are so many — and you

know that —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: We did not do a line by line

analysis.
MR. BROWN: — there are many phone records

involved and it gets confusing at times. And we only —
we didn't intend on — we were using it for this page

right here. And this is a version of documents we have

and it does appear to be cut off. I mean —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Whose phone records are they?

MS. HARVEY: But I think that — if I can —
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MR. BROWN: They're the same records.

MS. HARVEY: I think that Agent Fitzgerald is

making a different point and his point is not just that

they've been knocked off (inaudible) —
MR. BROWN: So --
MS. HARVEY: — if we just give him an

opportunity to review it line by line and see if it in

fact is substantively the same document (inaudible), I

think that would be fair since we didn't have an

opportunity to do that and went on the assumption that it

was the same exhibit.
MR. BROWN: You're saying — right.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: So they cut off the

date and the initial time and left the terminating time

and asked me specifically to find the call based on the

terminating time. They did not leave the initial time on

there, so the call is — you can't find the call on here

because there is no call at 8:04 because they cut off that

time, whether purpose or on accident.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Your Honor, may I make the

following suggestion or the following request? I think

we’ll get to the bottom of this, no doubt. If I could ask

the Court to make a photocopy for itself as well as for

the State of this document.

THE COURT: And we say this document now, this

ACCUSCRIBES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICE
-466-2033 2007 W. Rogers Avenue Baltimore, MD 21209 667-210-2925

Find links to evidence described above and many more original documents from this case
                at The Undisclosed Wiki     https://www.adnansyedwiki.com/PCR2016

T-H-A-N-K-S C-A-L-E-B



1
2
3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

298

IWFLWIWFFJ 11m'i 11w i m

ADNAN EYED v. STATE OF MARYLAND
February 5, 2016 BEFORE MARTIN P. WELCH, JUDGE

is —
MR. BROWN: That's fine. It's an exhibit. It's

in evidence.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Just so then, first. And then

second, Your Honor, if this is an expert witness he's not

sequestered. He’s not subject to sequestering. Now that

the issue has been raised in the presence of the Court, if

we could have an opportunity to talk with the Special

Agent.
I’m not sure I quite understand what we're

dealing with here, but over the weekend I'm sure we can

review this. I would like permission to talk with the

agent about this subject matter, only this particular

exhibit only. I will in the presence of others ensure

that no other discussions take place to understand what

that is. But I would like the Court's permission to do

that.
MR. BROWN: I don't think it's necessary.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: I don't actually know that — I

don't think I need the Court's permission because he's a

non-sequestered expert witness, but I will ask for the

Court’s permission since I appreciate that something might

be — something complicated might be happening here.

MR. BROWN: I don't have any problem with that.
You can talk to him about this, but —
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THE COURT: My -- because it's so much over my

pay grade. What --
MR. BROWN: Can I tell the -- I mean they've all

talked and —
MR. VIGNARAJAH: We have not —
THE COURT: I’m going to call Mr. Brown's

personal —
MR. BROWN: Okay.

THE COURT: — 40, number 40 —
MR. BROWN: Number 40.
THE COURT: — is —
MR. BROWN: It's the same.

THE COURT: — the exact same thing as this.

MR. BROWN: I think it’s a copy. It's a copy.

MS. HARVEY: Can we just get two, a copy of each

just so there s no issue?

THE COURT: So this is what you all gave me

before it was introduced. This is my personal photocopy.
MS. HARVEY: Yeah. What I'm asking is if we can

make a copy of the Court's copy as well as —
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Is it the same or no?

MR. BROWN: It's the same.

MS. HARVEY: Right, but we can make that

determination.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Take a look at it
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right now.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: I think that's a very subtle

(inaudible).
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: I think it was just

highlighted.
MR. BROWN: Other than the highlights.
MS. HARVEY: What I’m saying is I'd like to —

it's 5:30 and I don’t want to spend line by line analysis

on 24 — however many pages it is.
MR. NIETO: The suggestion that it's a line by

line analysis isn't necessary.
MS. HARVEY: Well# that's what just got said. I

mean —
MR. NIETO: No, no. I thought that was an issue

to it being cut off (inaudible).
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Can I make a suggestion? I'm

so sorry. If everybody can — I’m just going to — I know

everybody's — I think photocopying is a very reliable

way. It'll allow us an opportunity to reflect on what is

going on.
MR. BROWN: You're alleging there's a difference

in these two documents; is that correct?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: I’m absolutely (inaudible).
MR. BROWN: Is that correct? Is that correct,

Tiffany?
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MS. HARVEY: I'll just check it. No, it's not

correct. I know you, so I'm not alleging that. What I'm.

saying is if there's not it's really easy. Why can't we

just make a copy of both? I'm not alleging that.

MR. BROWN: Make two copies.
MS. HARVEY: I don't understand why there's an

issue.
THE COURT: So we'll know, the ones with the —
MR. BROWN: It says admitted.
MS. HARVEY: One says admitted on it.
THE COURT: That's Mr. Brown's version and this

part.

MR. NIETO: Make all the copies —
MR. BROWN: Sure, make a hundred copies.

THE COURT: No, just make one copy.
MR. BROWN: But don't waste paper.

THE LAW CLERK: One copy of each?

THE COURT: One copy of each.

And Agent, we're going to try our best. You’re
going to be the first witness on Monday morning.

SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: I appreciate that.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: And I just want to understand,

PC-40 was not disclosed to us but you believe it was in

the Defense file?

MR. BROWN: It — I will — it is a version of

ACCUSCRI6ES TRANSCRIPTION SERVICE
-466-2033 2007 w. Rogers Avenue Baltimore, MD 21209 667-210-2925

Find links to evidence described above and many more original documents from this case
                at The Undisclosed Wiki     https://www.adnansyedwiki.com/PCR2016

T-H-A-N-K-S C-A-L-E-B



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

302

IWFLWIWFFJ 11 \u'i i \}j i[Hi

ADNAN SYED v. STATE OF MARYLAND
February 5, 2016 BEFORE MARTIN P. WELCH, JUDGE

this that was a bad copy apparently.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: It was in your file?

MR. BROWN: So I would be willing to replace it

with a cleaner copy. I do recall we were scrambling to

find it at the last minute and I think it's from our file.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: So that ’ll be contained on the

CD that we received?

MR. BROWN: I believe it would be, yeah. I

believe it would be.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: So we received a CD, again on

the record, from Defense Counsel several weeks ago

pursuant to the order. We printed out —
MR. BROWN: Right, right.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Those are some of the documents

that we've been culling from, and you believe that it was

included in that. So it wasn’t a recent, you didn't make

the copy last night. It was a copy, it was in the

original defense copy.
MR. BROWN: Did you not hear me the first time?

MR. VIGNARAJAH: Sorry, Mr. Brown. I'm not

suggesting anything. I just want to make sure that

everything is fine.

MR. BROWN: You kind of are acting that way.

THE COURT: All right, gentlemen. Let's —
we're going to make copies. We're going to exchange it.
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Good, bad or indifferent it was introduced.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Yeah.

THE COURT: So 40's in.
MR. BROWN: And Your Honor, I will say if it was

a copy we weren't focused on. You know, there’s a lot of

versions of these floating around. We weren ’t focused on

any -- we weren't planning on using it other than for the

very first, for this part. And if we put a bad copy into

evidence then we'll replace it, but it was, I mean you

agreed to it.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: I'm not objecting to the fact

that it's in evidence, I’m objecting to something

different.
MR. BROWN: But I'm happy to correct it or

resubmit it, whatever Your Honor wants.
THE COURT: Let's get the copies and I'm sure

it's just a screw-up. We're all fallible and we'll move

on, all right.
MR. BROWN: That's fine.

THE COURT: So more importantly, so I can get my

staff out of here, I think Ms. Simone is okay document

wise but if you just want to make sure you all agree on

the documents.
MR. NIETO: Should I have two copies, I guess?

The court file and the one we have.
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THE COURT: No, no, no. I'm speaking

of what the normal --
MR. NIETO: Sure.

THE COURT: — press or media review of

exhibits at night. That's what I'm more concerned with.
I can stay as long as you want on this issue, but I don't

think we need to once he comes back with the copies. And

so the original, what I ’m calling the judge's copy of the

exhibit I'll keep and give those back.
MR. VIGNARAJAH: Thank you, Special Agent. See

you Monday.
THE COURT: All right. Well, thank you, Agent,

and we'll have a good, safe weekend.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Super Bowl.
MS. HARVEY: Thank you.

MR. VIGNARAJAH: And Your Honor — Mr. Special

Agent, I just want to be clear. I know we're still on the

record. The Judge has permitted us to talk about this

particular matter. You’re a non-sequestered expert

witness.

THE COURT: Just that. Okay.
SPECIAL AGENT FITZGERALD: Thank you.
THE COURT: Thank you. Ms. Simone.

(Off the record discussion between Court and Clerk.)

THE COURT: Good night.
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THE CLERK: Okay, good night.

(At 5:36:02 p.m., proceeding adjourned until Monday,

February 8, 2016 at 9:30 a.m.)
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